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THE MAINE REPUBLICAN PARTY and
SENATOR BILL COHEN,

Defendants.

INTRODUCTION
The Maine Republican Party has embarked on an ambitious and flagrantly illegal

program of raising "soft money" for the re-election candidacy of Senator Bill Cohen. A
reception is scheduled for this Saturday, September 23, at Oqunquit, Maine, featuring
President George Bush as a "special guest" -- and representatives of many state corporations
bearing company checks for the Cohen re-election effort.

This complaint requests an investigation by the FEC of this violation of section 441b
of the Act, which prohibits "soft money" corporate spending in support of federal candidates,
including Senator Cohen.

FACTS

Few illegal "soft money" events have been advertised more openly, or conducted in
more clear cut violation of the law, than the one scheduled by The Maine Republican Party for
this weekend in Maine. Solicitations have been accompanied by a letter from the Party
Finance Chair, Forrester Smith, who acknowledges an attempt to circumvent federal law. He

states:
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As you know, corporations can't give to Bill Cohen directly so I hope
you'll urge them to come via The Maine Republican Party.

Mr. Smith urges "your company and all your clients” (his emphasis) to attend the fundraiser,
which he describes as "special and exciting.” (Exhibit "A).

The written solicitation (Exhibit "B") includes a response card which emphasizes the
strong business presence and corporate money wanted and expected at the event.
Contributors are specifically asked to "make your business check payable” to The Maine

Republican Party. Recipients of the solicitation are all "corporate representatives” and invited

in that capacity: each is asked to state whether he or she will "represent our campaign at

Senator Cohen's reception” or will be sending other "representatives from our company.”

THE VIOLATION
Federal candidates in Maine, like all federal candidates, are required to comply with

the prohibition on corporate spending in federal elections. Likewise, political parties must
comply with this prohibition.
Section 441D states:

It is unlawful for any national bank or corporation whatever, or to
make a contribution or expenditure in connection with any election at
which presidential and vice presidential electors or a Senator or
Representative in, or a Delegate or Resident Commissioner to,
Congress are to be voted for . . . or for any candidate, political
committee, or other person knowingly to accept or receive any
contribution prohibited by this section, or any officer or any director of
any corporation or any national bank or any officer of any labor
organization to consent to any contribution or expenditure by the
corporation, national bank, or labor organization, as the case may be
prohibited by this section.

In recent years, the Federal Election Commission has promulgated specific rules under court
order to assure that parties do not misuse "soft money" illicitly to aid their federal candidates.
11 CFR. § 106.5. The law clearly requires that any activity, like the one conducted this

weekend in Maine, that is intended to assist a federal candidate be paid with only those funds
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permitted under federal law -- individual contributions or contributions from registered

political action committees, all made within limits and reported. All corporate contributions

made directly or indirectly are strictly prohibited. The Maine Republican Party has completely
disregarded this requirement.’
PENALTIES
Federal law imposes aggravated penalties for "knowing and willful” violations of the
Act. 2 US.C. §§ 437g(a)}(5XB), (C); § 437g(d). Here Mr. Smith specifically admits an intent
to accomplish by indirect means what the law directly prohibits. ("As you know, corporations
can't give to Bill Cohen directly so I hope you'll urge them to come via The Maine Republican

Party. The law states that:

For purposes of [the corporate spending prohibition], the term

“contribution or expenditure" shall include any direct or indirect
payment, distribution, loan, advance, deposit, or gift of money, or any

services, or anything of value (except a loan of money by a national or
State bank made in accordance with the applicable banking laws and
regulations and in the ordinary course of business) to any candidate,
campaign committee, or political party or organization, in connection
with any election to any of the offices referred to in this section . . .

See also § 114.1(aX1).
N ION
Because of the serious nature of these violations, the Commission should act
immediately to institute an investigation and complete it promptly to assure that any illegal
monies raised from corporations this weekend in Maine for Senator Cohen are not spent in his

campaign.

Should the Maine Party have wished to engage in "joint fundraising” activity with Senator Cohen, it
could have done so but did not. It has not complied with the specific requirements of the Commission's joint
fundraising regulations. 11 CF.R § 102.17.

[040035-0001/DA952630.003]




[04003-0001/DA952630.003)

L]

Respectfully submitted,

W) Je~2

Executive Director

Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee
430 South Capitol Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20003

(202) 224-2447
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& The Maine Republican Party




B

£ ] .
11, Lan bl
g g8 .. § W m, 15
{ ,w S I Wm !
m,m < .W .W M.m %M ,mm |
: P &0
S 3

Senator William Cohen win President George Bush

([ 1 will represent our compeny at Senator Cohen's reception
with President Bush.

Also attending:

3 1 cannot aend but sm sending represcatatives from owr company.

Eaclosed is our business check in the amount of for
tickets st $100 per person.

(L) 1 connot anend and canact send representatives but here is our
corporate contribution of $

Please make your companry business check payable to
m.ro Magine Republican Party
2
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Pacqpliore wsth Prosidont Busk
Sptowbon 23, 1995 . el

Yes, 1 will attend private VIP reception and photo opportunity
D with President Bush and Senator Cohen. Enclosed is my

contribution for $1,000 per person. (Limited space available.)
Attending will be

< Ym!vﬂuﬂ-ﬁ&omulmptwnmthl’mxdmtm
and Senator Coben. Encloeed is my contribution of $
) for reservations ($100 per person).

Attending will be

No, I am unsbie to attend, but I want to help Senator Bill
Coben's re-election campaign. Enclosed is § -

Pleass make check payabls to: Cohen for Senator
g -
For more information pleass call (207)761-9696

Name
Address ’
City, Stats, Zp
Home Phone
Federal law requires that Cehen for Benate report the full name, address,

mﬂmd‘w&-ﬂnﬁwmﬂuﬂmﬂw
w--q-d’ hmdunduyur Phuompkhthotouwing-
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Work Phone




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

September 29, 199§

Donald Foley, Executive Director
Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee
430 South Capitol S§t., SE

washington, DC 20003

MUR 4264
Dear Mr. Foley:

This letter acknowledges receipt on September 20, 1995, of
the complaint you filed on behalf of the Democratic Senatorial
Campaign Committee alleging possible violations of the Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"). The

respondent(s) will be notified of this complaint within five
days.

You will be notified as soon as the Federal Election
Commission takes final action on your complaint. Should you
receive any additional information in this matter, please
forward it to the Office of the General Counsel. Such

information must be sworn to in the same manner as the original
complaint. We have numbered this matter MUR 4264. Please refer
to this number in all future communications. For your
information, we have attached a brief description of the
Commission’s procedures for handling complaints.

Sincerely,

Mi. Tohon

Mary L. Taksar, Attorneg
Central Enforcement Docket

Enclosure
Procedures

Celebrating the Comnussion’s 20th Annwersan

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

September 29, 1995

P. James Nicholson, Treasurer
The Maine Republican Party

76 Silver St.,
Waterville, ME 04901

MUR 4264

Dear Mr. Nicholson:
The Federal Election Commission received a complaint which
indicates that the Maine Republican Party("Committee") and you,
~ as treasurer, may have violated the Federal Election Campaign
Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"). A copy of the complaint is
enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 4264. Please refer
to this number in all future correspondence.

Under the Act, you have the opgortunity to demonstrate in
writing that no action should be taken against the Committee and
~ ou, as treasurer, in this matter. Please submit any factual or
egal materials which you believe are relevant to the
Commission’s analysis of this matter. Where appropriate, '
statements should be submitted under oath. Your response, which

3 should be addressed to the General Counsel’s Office, must be
submitted within 15 days of receipt of this letter. If no

Ny response is received within 15 days, the Commission may take
further action based on the available information.

-

This matter will remain confidential in accordance with
%) 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(4)(B) and § 437g(a)(12)(A) unless you notify
-> the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made
. public. If you intend to be represented by counsel in this
matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed
form stating the name, address and telephone number of such
counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any
notifications and other communications from the Commission.

Celebrating the Commission’s 20th Anniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED



u have any questions, please contact Alva E. Saith at

1f£ yo
(202) 21;-3400. For your information, we have enclosed a briet
description of the Commission’s procedures for handling

complaints.
Sincerely,

"Y'\n,u\a Ty~

Mary L. Taksar, Attorney
Central Enforcement Docket

Enclosures
1. Complaint

2. Procedures
3. Designation of Counsel Statement




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

September 29, 199§

Forrester Smith

c/0 The Maine Republican Party
76 Silver St.,

Waterville, ME 04901

MUR 4264

Dear Mr. Smith:

The Federal Election Commission received a complaint which
indicates that you may have violated the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act*). A copy of the
complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 4264.
Please refer to this number in all future correspondence.

Under the Act, you have the opportunity to demonstrate in
writing that no action should be taken against you in this
matter. Please submit ang factual or legal materjials which you
believe are relevant to the Commission’s analysis of this
matter. Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under
oath. Your response, which should be addressed to the General
Counsel’s Office, must be submitted within 15 days of receipt of
this letter. If no response is received within 15 days, the
Commission may take further action based on the available
information.

This matter will remain confidential in
accordance with 2 U.8.C. § 437g(a)(4)(B) and § 437g(a)(12)(A)
unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the
matter to be made public. 1If you intend to be represented by
counsel in this matter, ¥1easo advise the Conlissgon by
completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and

telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel

to receive any notifications and other communications from the
Commission.

Celebrating the Commission’s 20th Anmiversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




1f gou have any questions, please contact Alva E. Smith at
(202) 219-3400. ror your information, we have enclosed a brief
description of the Commission’s procedures for handling
complaints.

Sincerely,

Moy 3. Thae~

Mary L. Taksar, Attorne
Central Enforcement Docket

Enclosures
1. Complaint
2. Procedures
3. Designation of Counsel Statement




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C 2046}

September 29, 1995

Merton G. Henry, Treasurer
Cohen for Senator

P.O. Box 1379

Portland, ME 04104

RE: MUR 4264

Dear Mr. Henry:

The Federal Election Commission received a complaint which
indicates that Cohen for Senator ("Committee”) and you, as
treasurer, may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act
of 1971, as amended ("the Act®"). A copy of the complaint is
enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 4264. Please refer
to this number in all future correspondence.

Under the Act, you have the opeortunity to demonstrate in
writing that no action should be taken against the Committee and

ou, as treasurer, in this matter. Please submit any factual or

egal materials which you believe are relevant to the
Commission’s analysis of this matter. Wwhere appropriate,
statements should be submitted under oath. Your response, which
should be addressed to the General Counsel’s Office, must be
submitted within 15 days of receipt of this letter. 1If no
response is received within 15 days, the Commission may take
further action based on the available information.

This matter will remain confidential in
accordance with 2 U.8.C. § 437g(a)(4)(B) and § 437g(a)(12)(A)
unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the
matter to be made public. If you intend to be represented by
counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by
completing the enclosed gor- stating the name, address and
telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel

to receive any notifications and other communications from the
Commission.

Celebrating the Commussion’s 20th Anniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




1f ;ou have any questions, please contact Alva E. Smith at
(202) 219-3400. For your information, we have enclosed a brief
description of the Commission’s procedures for handling
complaints.

Sincerely,

Ms. Tuhpyon

Mary L. Taksar, Attorne
Central Enforcement Docket

Enclosures
l. Complaint
2. Procedures
3. Designation of Counsel Statement
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

September 29, 1995

The Honorable Bill Cohen
322 Hart Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510

RE: MUR 4264

Dear Senator Cohen:

The Federal Election Commission received a complaint which
indicates that you may have violated the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"). A copy of the
complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 4264.
Please refer to this number in all future correspondence.

Under the Act, you have the opEortunity to demonstrate in
writing that no action should be taken against you in this
matter. Please submit ang factual or legal materials which you
believe are relevant to the Commission’s analysis of this
matter. Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under
oath. Your response, which should be addressed to the General
Counsel’s Office, must be submitted within 15 days of receipt of
thigs letter. If no response is received within 15 days, the
Commission may take further action based on the available
information.

This matter will remain confidential in
accordance with 2 U.8.C. § 437g(a)(4)(B) and § 437g(a)(12)(A)
unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the
matter to be made public. If you intend to be represented by
counsel in this matter, gloasc advise the Commission by
completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and
telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel
to receive any notifications and other communications from the
Commission.

Celebrating the Commission’s 20th Annmiversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




1f gou have any questions, please contact Alva E. Smith at
(202) 219-3400. Pror your information, we have enclosed a brief
description of the Commission’s procedures for handling
complaints.

Sincerely,

Mary L. Taksar, Attorne
Central Enforcement Docket

Enclosures
1. Complaint
2. Procedures
3. Designation of Counsel Statement




THOMAS B. WHEATLEY :
ATTORNEY AT Law*
55 HIGHLAND STREET h " ll u " '
PORTLAND, MAINE O4 | 03-3042
(207) 7730155 Fax: (207) 773-0152

*ALSO LICENSED IN MASSACHUSETTS

October 17, 1995

by fax to (202) 219-3923 and overnight mail
Alva E. Smith

Federal Election Commission

999 E Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20463

Re: Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee v. The Maine
Republican Party and Senator Bill Cohen, MUR 4264.

Dear Ms. Smith:

As I mentiocned in my telephone call today, I am writing on
behalf of The Maine Republican Party to request additional time
to respond to the Complaint and Ms. Taksar’s letter of September
29, 2995

Ms. Taksar'’'s letter, postmarked on October 2, 1995, was
addressed to The Maine Republican Party’s Finance Chairman at the
address of the party’s Treasurer in Waterville, Maine. It was
received there on October 5, 1995, and forwarded on to the party
headquarters in Augusta. I knew nothing about it until October
11, 1995, when I was called by The Maine Republican Party’s new
Executive Director, Rick Tyler. If the response is due 15 days
after October 5, 1995, it currently is due on October 20, 1995.
I am busy with other matters in my law practice this week, and
need additional time to prepare the response. I, therefore,
respectfully request an additional 20 days to respond on behalf
of The Maine Republican Party, which would make the response due
by November 9, 1995.

I have asked the Maine Republican Party’s Executive Director
to mail and fax the designation of counsel form to you. His
address at the party’s headquarters is: Richard W. Tyler,
Executive Director, The Maine Republican Party, 100 Water Street,
Hallowell, Maine 04347, and the telephone number there is (207)
622-6247.




Alva E. Smith, Federal Election Commission
October 17, 1995
Page 2

I of course would appreciate a prompt decision on my request
for more time, as otherwise I will have to drop other business in
order to get a response to you by Friday. Thank you for your
help.

Sincerely,

i P Yo

Thomas B. Wheatley

cc: Richard W. Tyler
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The above-named Individual s hereby designated as my
counsel and {s authorlzed to receive any notifications and other
communications from the Commission and to act on my behalf before

the Cornnission,

Ot 17, )55
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

October 20, 199§

Thomas B. Wheatley, Esq.
5S Highland Street
Portland, ME 04103

RE: MUR 4264

Dear Mr. Wheatley:

This is in response to your facsimile dated October 17,
1995, requesting an extension until November 9, 1995 to respond
to the complaint filed in the above-noted matter. After
considering the circumstances presented in your letter, the
Office of the General Counsel has granted the requested

extension. Accordingly, your response is due by the close of
business on November 9, 1995.

1f you have any questions, you may contact me at

(202) 219-3400.
xcctcl A
l‘:) M\~

Erik Morrison
Staff Member

Celebrating the Commussion’s 20th Anniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




0

4

Ve

October 20, 1995%

Mary L. Tasker, Esquire E?

Central Enforcement Docket 23

Federal Election Commission

999 E. Street, N.W. 2

Washington, D.C. 20463 :’" 3
o £-'..,

Re: MUR 4264 ; 5

- 2

Dear Ms. Tasker: &

As Treasurer of the Cohen for Senator Commitgee, I am
responding to your letter and the accompanying complaint, which
we received on October 6, 1995. The complaing qhould. be
dismissed immediately by the Federal Election Commission since
its assertions of violations are contradicted by the plain
facts in the case and nothing contained in the complaint,
despite its overheated rhetoric, constitutes a V191at1qn of
federal election law. In short, this complaint 1is a
transparent attempt to score political points and grab
headlines without concern for the facts, the law or the
legitimate workload of the Commission.

EACTS

Former President George Bush agreed to sponsor a September
23, 1995 fundraising event in Ogunquit, Maine for Senator Bill
Cohen's 1996 re-election campaign. The Cohen for Senator
Committee paid all the costs of the event, including the
mailing of the invitations. Affidavit of Merton G. Henry, at
¥4 (hereinafter “Henry Aff.") Affidavit of Forrester Smith, at
Y6 (hereinafter "Smith Aff.").

The Maine Republican Party ("State Party"), after learning
of the event, asked if it could send out invitations to the
same event so that it could raise funds for its non-federal
account. Affidavit of Rick Tyler (hereinafter "Tyler Aff.") at
¥2. The state party wished to raise non-federal funds so that
it would not compete with Senator Cohen for funds at the event
he was organizing. Tyler Aff., ¥2; Smith Aff. ¥3. Corporate
funds raised by a state party are permissible under Maine law.
None of the funds raised by the state party have gone or will

1385 Congress Street

P.O. Box 1379, Poriand, Maine 04104
Tel (207) 879-BiLL

91440
fam 24

no{gy
e



Mary L. Tasker, Esquire
Page Two
October 20, 1995

go to aid Senator Cohen's re-election effort. Henry Aff., 95,
6; Tyler Aff., 45; Smith Aff. 4.

Senator Cohen's Committee agreed to this request because,
as the highest ranking Republican officeholder 1in Maine,
Senator Cohen tries to aid the state party when he can. Henry
Aff., ¥Y3. Once Senator Cohen agreed to let the Party raise
funds from the event, Party officials, without showing the
invitation first to any representatives of Senator Cohen's
committee, mailed over 1,000 invitations to the event along
with a handwritten note that solicited non-federal funds for
its accounts. Smith Aff.¥2; Tyler Aff., 9%3; Henry Aff., 9%5.
Approximately 15 of the invitations included the handwritten
note from Forrester Smith that is the subject of this
complaint. Tyler Aff., ¥Y4. The Cohen Committee paid all the
costs of the event itself, Henry Aff., 9%4; Tyler Aff., 94;
Smith Aff. 92. Donors wrote checks to either the Cohen for
Senator Committee or the Maine Republican Party. The event
raised $4,465.02 for the Maine Republican Party. Smith Aff.,
Y6; Tyler Aff., 96.

There was never any intent to use the funds raised by the
state party to aid Senator Cohen. Henry Aff., 995, 6; Smith
Aff., 9Y4; Tyler Aff., 96, 7. There has not been (and will not
be) any use of the funds raised by the Maine Republican Party
for 1its non-federal account on behalf of Senator Cohen's
campaign. I4d.

DISCUSSION

' : The complaint loses its
validity by its reckless disregard for the facts. For example,
in the first paragraph, the complaint states that the reception
will feature “"representatives of many state corporations
bearing company checks for the Cohen re-election effort."
There were no company checks and no corporate contributions for
the Cohen re-election effort. Henry Aff., 96; Smith Aff., 94;
Tyler Aff., 96. Other than this sweeping and inaccurate
charge, the complaint can offer no evidence. Indeed, evidence
would be impossible, since there were no such contributions.

14.

In the second paragraph, the complaint describes this
reception as an "illegal ‘'soft money' event” and alleges the
handwritten letter from the state party “"acknowledges an
attempt to circumvent the law.” First, a reading of the state
party letter shows that there is no attempt to circumvent
federal law. The letter states that there is a special event




Mary L. Tasker, Esquire
Page Three
October 20, 1995

that donors can attend. The letter says that since
corporations cannot give to Senator Cohen's campaign, the event
with former President Bush and Senator Cohen will nonetheless
be open to contributors who wish to help the state party's
non-federal account. There is nothing illegal about this. And
there is certainly no violation by Senator Cohen's Committee
for a statement by the state party on its letterhead with its
disclaimer that no one affiliated with Senator Cohen's
Committee even saw before it was distributed.

Secondly, it is curious that the Democratic Senatorial
Campaign Committee would call an event with separate federal
and non-federal solicitations an "illegal soft money event"
given that the DSCC itself frequently holds events in
Washington and around the country to solicit both types of
funds. Indeed, the DSCC's report filed with the FEC shows a
robust attempt both to raise and spend non-federal funds.
While the complaint cites 2 U.S.C. §441b, the gravamen of that
code section is the making of ®“a contribution or expenditure in
connection with any election® for federal office. Yet there is
no charge (and there cannot be because it never happened and
was never contemplated) that Senator Cohen's committee ever
received non-federal contributions or made expenditures with

non-federal funds. The state party did receive non-federal
funds from persons who wished to attend the event with the
former President but did not wish to spend personal or PAC
money. And that is permissible under Maine law. There never
was, nor will there ever be, any contribution to or expenditure
by the state party on Senator Cohen's behalf with non-federal
funds. Henry Aff., ¥5; Tyler Aff., ¥6; Smith Aff., %4.

At the bottom of Page 2, the complaint states that a
reception such as this one ®"intended to assist a federal
candidate® can only be paid for with funds permitted under
federal election law. Since the event was paid for exclusively
with federal funds from Senator Cohen's Committee, Henry Aff.,
Y4; Tyler Aff., 9%3; Smith Aff., 96, this complaint must be
dismissed. The state party asked, and was permitted, to try to
raise funds for its non-federal account through tiis event.
But Senator Cohen's committee paid all costs and in no way
received or benefitted from the non-federal funds raised by the
state party. 14. As the attachments to the complaint make
clear, any non-federal funds had to be made payable to the
Maine Republican Party. The assertion that the state party
*disregarded*” the federal law prohibition on corporate
contributions is just plain wrong.




Mary L. Tasker, Esquire
Page Four
October 20, 1995

Similarly, the inference on Page 3 of knowing and willful
violations is ridiculous, and certainly not supported by so
much as a shred of evidence. Likewise, the unsupported
insinuation of improper “direct or indirect payment” is
frivolous, especially since Senator Cohen's committee paid for
the entire event and has received nothing from the state party.

Law: Besides manufacturing some citations to portions of
the statute and regulations that are irrelevant to this matter,
there are no violations in this case. The complaint itself, in
fact, does not allege any specific violations, primarily
because there were none.

Persons attending the event with former President
Bush and Senator Cohen could gain admittance either by writing
a federally permissible check to Senator Cohen's committee, or
by writing a check from non-federal sources to the Maine
Republican Party. Senator Cohen paid all the costs of the
event; the state party paid no costs. Federal law includes no
prohibition on a Senator helping a state party to raise money,
whether federal or non-federal.

There 1is no allegation (nor facts to support such an
allegation) of illegal spending on Senator Cohen's behalf, and
since Senator Cohen's committee paid all the event's costs, it
is difficult to see how he could have accepted a corporate
contribution. Similarly, Senator Cohen's committee knows that
the state party is not permitted to spend non-federal funds on
Senator Cohen's election, and the committee has no intention of
violating the law.

CONCLUSION

This complaint is completely lacking in merit and should be
dismissed by the Commission. However, there is one item in the
complaint with which Senator Cohen's Committee and the DSCC
agree -- the Commission should act immediately.

Unsubstantiated political charges such as these should not
be allowed to fester. Respondents urge the Federal Election
Commission to dismiss this complaint promptly.

Respectfully submitted,

W

Merton G. Henry, Trea er
Cohen for Senator Committee




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Matter Under Review 4264,
Cohen for Senate Committee
REREPRPOr g
Merton G. Henry, being duly sworn, deposes and stateq:ps

follows:

X I have been Treasurer of the Cohen for

=7
Committee ("Committee”) continuously since 1990. I held gatg 4

position up to and including the September 23, 1995 fundraising
event that is at issue in this MUR.

2. That event consisted of a reception hosted by former
President George Bush in Ogunquit, Maine to benefit the Cohen
for Senator Committee. The Cohen for Senator Committee sent
invitations for the event by mail.

3. The Maine Republican Party, after 1learning about the
event, asked if it could also raise some money from that
event. Because Senator Cohen is the senior Republican office
holder in the state, it is his policy to assist the state party
whenever possible. Accordingly, the Cohen for Senate Committee
agreed that the state party could seek to raise non-federal
funds pursuant to Maine law for its non-federal accounts from
the event.

4/, The Cohen for Senator Committee paid all costs
associated with the event including mailing invitations, food,
beverages and all associated costs. The 1lone exception was
invitations sent by the Maine Republican Party to solicit

non-federal contributions for its non-federal account.




5. In raising its funds, the state party sent out over
1,000 invitations to its own list. No official of the Cohen
for Senate Committee saw the state party's invitation before it
was sent out and mailed. The Maine Party did raise some funds
from that event for its own uses. None of those funds were
ever planned to gb to Senator Cohen's campaign. None have gone
to Senator Cohen's campaign. And none will be used to benefit
Senator Cohen's campaign.

6. The Cohen Committee received no company or corporate
contributions or checks as a result of the September 23rd
fundraising event, or any other fundraising event. The Cohen
Committee in no way received or benefitted from the non-federal

funds raised by the state party.

eitin .

Merton G. Henry, Treasur
Cohen for Senator Commi e

Sworn to before me this
20th day of October, 1995
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Matter Under Review 4264,

Cohen for Scnate Commitice

AFFIDAVIT

Rick Tyler, being duly swom, deposes and states as follows:

1. 1 am Executive Director of the Maine Republican Party. 1 served in this
capacity up to and including the September 23, 1995 fundraising reception hosted by
former President George Bush for Senator Bill Cohen.

2. Afier lcaming of the cvent to benefit Senator Cohen's campaign, the Maine
Republican Party, desirous of raising funds for its own programs, asked the Cohen
for Senator Committee if it could also raisc funds at the cvent. In order not to
compete with Senator Cohen’s Committec. the State party agreed 1o raise only non-
federal funds from corporations, as permitted by Maine law.

3. The Maine Rcepublican Party paid for its own fundraising invitations and
mailed out 1,000. It paid for no other costs associated with the cvent which, to my
knowledge. was paid for entircly by Senator Cohen’s Committce.

4. The Maine party sent out its invitations without showing them first 10 any
representative of Senator Cohen's Commitice.  Approximatcly fiftcen of the one

thousand was sent with a handwritten note from the panty’'s Finance Chairman,

Forrester Smith. That solicitation instructed potential donors to make any corporate

checks payable to the Maine Republican Party.

5. Nonc of the funds raiscd by thc State party at the cvent have gone or will go 1o
aid Senator Cohen's reclection cffort. There were no company checks and no
corporate contributions for the Cohen reclection effort as a result of this event.
There was ncver any intent 10 have the funds used in such a manner. The Maine

Republican Party’s intent was to usc the funds for its own programs and purposes.




6. To the best of my knowledge and belief, Senator Cohen’s Committee never
received any non-federal contributions or made expenditures with non-federal
funds. The State party did raisc $4,465.02 in non-federal funds, but there has not
been and will not be any contribution or expenditure by the State party with non-
federal funds to aid Scnator Cohen's reelection campaign.

7. The invitation to thc cvent and Forester Smith’s handwritten note evidenced
no attempt to circumvent federal clection law. The invitation is quite explicit that all
non-federal funds will go to the Maine Rcpublican Pany for its programs. and thosc
funds will not go to benefit Scnator Cohen. The invitation was sent on the State

party's namc and contained the State party's

Rick Tyler |

1
|

Swom to before me this
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My commission Expires:_




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Matter Under Review 4264,

Cohen for Senate Committee

AFFIDAVIT

Forrester Smith, being duly swom. deposes and states as follows:

1. I am State Finance Chair of the Maine Republican Party and have served in
that capacity on a continuous basis since 1992.

2. As State Finance Chair, 1 enclosed a hand-written note in invitations sent by
the state party to the September 23, 1995 event paid for by the Cohen for Senate
Committec. The purpose of my note was to urge corporate donations to the Maine
Republican Pany.

3. Because 1 knew that federal law prohibits corporate contributions to federal
campaigns such as Scnator Cohen's, 1 thought that this event provided a good
opportunity for the state party to raise corporatc funds, which are permittcd under

Maine law for state clections. Since the Cohen Committee was gencrous enough to

allow the statc party to use this event for the state party’s own fundraising cfforts, |

felt it was important for us not to target the same source of funds as Senator Cohen’s
committee. Therefore, we sct out to raisc funds that could not be used to aid Senator
Cohen.

4. The purpose of my notc was never in any way to solicit corporate or other
donations for the direct or indirect bencfit of the Cohen Commitiee. My notc simply
reminded those on the state pary’s mailing list that, while they could not make
corporate donations to aid th¢ Cohen Committce. they could to the state party for use
under Maine law. There were no corporate funds for Senator Cohen's Committee and
it is the intent of the state party to follow federal election law and pot spend any

corporate funds to aid Scnator Cohen’s campaign.




5. 1 sent my handwritten note without having any discussions whatsoever with
anyone associated with the Cohen Committee. and no one on the Cohen Commitice saw
or approved my note before it was sent in the mails.

6. The state party raised $4,465.02 from the event. To the best of my knowledge,
the Cohen for Senate Committee paid all costs of the cvent. The state party did not pay

any costs of the event.

e ol .T'_df B
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Forrester Smith

Swom to before me this
z rday af October

. 1995

L /1Qa8k
My commission Expires: e/




THOMAS B. WHEATLEY

ATTORNEY AT LawW*
55 HIGHLAND STREET
PORTLAND, MAINE 04 103-3042
(207) 7730155 Fax: (207) 773-0152

*ALSO LICENSED IN MASSACHUSETTS

November 6, 1995
By Overnight Mail

Mary L. Tasker, Esqg.
Central Enforcement Docket
Federal Election Commission
999 B . Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20463

Re: Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee v. The Maine
Republican Party and Senator Bill Cohen, MUR 4264

Dear Ms. Tasker:

As counsel to the Maine Republican Party, I am writing in
response to your letter cf September 29, 1995, and the enclosed
Complaint.® The Complaint charges that “The Maine Republican
Party has embarked on an ambitious and flagrantly illegal program
of raising ‘soft money’ for the re-election candidacy of Senator
Bill Cohen.” Nothing could be farther from the truth. As
detailed in the accompanying Affidavits of Rick Tyler, the
Executive Director of the Maine Republican Party, and Forrester
Smith, the Finance Chair of the Maine Republican Party:

Former President George Bush agreed to sponsor a September
23, 1995 fundraising event in Ogunquit, Maine for Senator Bill
Cohen's 1996 reelection campaign. After learning of the event,

Your letter, postmarked on October 2, 1995, was addressed to
the Maine Republican Party’s Finance Chairman at the address of the
party’s treasurer in Waterville, Maine. It was received there on
October 5, 1995, forwarded to the party’s headquarters in Augusta, and
then forwarded on to me on October 11, 1995. By letter of October 17,
1995, I asked for additional time to submit this response. By letter
of October 20, 1995, I was notified that my request had been granted
by the Office of the General Counsel, and that this response is due by
the close of business on November 9, 1995.




Mary L. Tasker, Esq.
November 6, 1995
Page 2

the Maine Republican Party, desirous of raising funds for its own
programs, asked the Cohen for Senator Committee if it could also
raise funds at the event. In order not to compete with Senator
Cohen’s Committee, the State party committee agreed to raise only
non-federal funds from corporations, as permitted by Maine law.
The Maine Republican Party paid for its own fundraising
invitations, and mailed 1,000 of them, but paid for no other
costs associated with the event, which were all paid by Senator
Cohen’s Committee.

Approximately fifteen of the one thousand invitations were
sent with the handwritten note from the party’s Finance Chairman,
Forrester Smith, which serves as the basis for the Democratic
Senatorial Campaign Committee’s Complaint. There was no attempt
nor intent to circumvent Federal Election Law. The invitation is
quite explicit that all corporate donations were for the Maine
Republican Party and not for Senator Cohen.

. None of the funds raised by the Maine Republican Party at
the event were intended to go to or will go to aid Senator
Cohen’s reelection effort. There were no company checks and no

y corporate contributions for the Cohen reelection effort as a

result of this event.

The Maine Republican Party concurs with the filing made by
Senator Cohen’s Committee that the Commission should act
immediately to dismiss the Democratic Senatorial Campaign

n Committee’s Complaint, that unsubstantiated and invalid political

charges such as these should not be allowed to fester.

Respectfully submitted,

— :
e B Tl
Thomas B. Wheatley,

Counsel to
The Maine Republican Party




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Matter Under Review 4264,

Maine Republican Party

AFFIDAVIT

Rick Tyler. being duly sworn, deposes and states as follows:

1. 1 am Exccutive Director of the Maine Republican Party. | served in this
capacity up to and including the September 23, 1995 fundraising reception hosted by
former President George Bush for Scnator Bill Cohen.

2. After leaming of the event 1o benefit Scnator Cohen's campaign, the Maine
Republican Party, desirous of raising funds for its own programs, asked the Cohen
for Senator Committee if it could also raisc funds at the event. In order not to
compete with Senator Cohen's Commitice. the State party agreed to raise only non-
federal funds from corporations. as permitted by Maine law.

3. The Mainc Recpublican Party paid for its own fundraising invitations and
mailed out 1,000. It paid for no other costs associated with the event which. to my
knowledge. was paid for entircly by Scnator Cohen’s Committee.

4. The Mainc party sent out its invitations without showing them first to any
represcntative of Scnator Cohen’s Committce.  Approximately fificen of the one

thousand was sent with a handwriticn notc from the party’s Finance Chairman,

Forrester Smith.  That solicitation instructed potential donors 1o make any corporaie

checks payable to the Maine Republican Party.

5. None of the funds raised by the State party at the cvent have gone or will go to
aid Senator Cohen's reelection effort.  There were no company checks and no
corporate contributions for the Cohen reelection cffort as a result of this cvent
There was never any intent to have the funds used in such a manner. Thc Maine

Republican Party’s intent was 1o use the funds for its own programs and purposcs.




6. To the best of my knowledge and belicf, Senator Cohen’s Committee never
received any non-federal contributions or made expenditurcs with non-federal
funds. The State party did raisc $4,465.02 in non-federal funds, but there has not
been and will not be any contribution or cxpenditure by the Staie party with non-
federal funds to aid Scnator Cohen’s reclection campaign.

7. The invitation to the event and Forester Smith’s handwritten note evidenced
no attempt to circumvent federal clection law. The invitation is quite explicit that all
non-federal funds will go to the Maine Rcpublican Pany for its programs, and those
funds will not go to benefit Senator Cohen. The invitatign was sent on the State

party’s namc and contained the State party’s

Swom to beforc me this
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

Matter Under Review 4264,

Maine Republican Parny

AFFIDAVIT

Forrester Smith, being duly swomn, deposes and states as follows:

1. I am State Finance Chair of the Maine Republican Party and have served in
that capacity on a continuous basis since 1992.

2. As Siate Finance Chair, I enclosed a hand-written note in invitations sent by
the state party to the September 23. 1995 event paid for by the Cohen for Senate
Committee. The purpose of my note was to urge corporatc donations to thc Maine
Republican Party.

3. Because | knew that federal law prohibits corporate contributions to federal
campaigns such as Senator Cohen’s, I thought that this event provided a good
opportunity for thc statc party to raise corporate funds, which arc pcrmitted under
Maine law for state elections. Since the Cohen Committee was generous enough to
allow thc state party to use this cvent for the statc party’'s own fundraising efforts, |
felt it was important for us not to target the same source of funds as Senator Cohen's
committee. Thercfore, we set out to raise funds that could not be used to aid Senator
Cohen.

4. The purposc of my nole was ncver in any way 1o solicit corporatc or other

donations for the direct or indircct benefit of the Cohen Commitice. My notc simply

reminded those on the state panty’'s mailing list that, while they could not make
corporatc donations to aid the Cohen Committce, they could to the state pany for use
under Maine law. There were no corporate funds for Senator Cohen’s Committce and
it is the intent of the state party 10 follow federal clection law and pot spend any

corporate funds to aid Scnator Cohen's campaign.
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5. 1 sent my handwritten note without having any discussions whatsoever with
anyonec associated with the Cohen Committee, and no onc on the Cohen Committee saw
or approved my note before it was sent in the mails.

6. The state party raised $4,465.02 from the event. To the best of my knowledge,
the Cohen for Senate Committee paid all costs of the event. The state party did not pay

any costs of the event.

| ‘
e el
Forrester Smith

Swom (0 before me this

2%réd day of _Lctober .

My commission Expircs:_z/f_/_“g%




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

999 E Street, N.W. .
Washington, D.C. 20463 bali 810

FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT ﬂ“"[

MUR 4264

Date Complaint filed: September 20, 1995
Date Activated: March 12, 1996
Staff Member: Stephan O. Kline

COMPLAINANT: Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee
RESPONDENTS: Maine Republican Party and
P. James Nicholson, as treasurer
Cohen for Senator and
Merton G. Henry, as treasurer
Senator Bill Cohen
RELEVANT STATUTE: 2US.C. §441b
INTERNAL REPORTS CHECKED: Disclosure Reports
FEDERAL AGENCIES CHECKED: None
L GENERATION OF MATIER
MUR 4264 arose from a complaint received by the Federal Election Commission
(“Commission”™) on September 20, 1995. Donald Foley, Executive Director of the
Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee, (“Complainant” or “DSCC”) alleged that
the Maine Republican Party and Senator Bill Cohen violated provisions of the Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, (“Act” or “FECA™). Respondents -- Maine
Republican Party and P. James Nicholson, as treasurer (‘“Maine Republican Party” or

“state party”); Senator Cohen; and the Cohen for Senator Committee and Merton G.

Henry, as treasurer, (“the Cohen Committee™) -- were notified of the complaint on




September 29, 1995. Senator Cohen and the Cohen Committee responded to the

complaint on October 23, 1995. The Maine Republican Party responded to the complaint

on November 7, 1995.
II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. Law

Under FECA, itis unlawful for any corporation to make a contribution or
expenditure in connection with a federal election, or for any candidate or political
committee to knowingly accept any prohibited contribution. 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a). A
contribution or expenditure includes any direct or indirect payment, distribution, loan,
advance, deposit, or gift of money or any services, or anything of value.

2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(2).

In contrast, Maine election law permits corporations to make contributions in
connections with state and local elections. The identical $5,000 limitation is in effect for
political committees, other committees, associations, and corporations. Me. Rev. Stat.
Ann. tit. 21-A § 1015(2).

Pursuant to 11 C.F.R. § 100.5(e)(4). a party committee is a political committee
which represents a political party and is part of the official party structure at the national,
state, or local level. Under Commission regulation 11 C.I.R. § 102.5(a)(3). any party
commiittee solicitation which makes any reference to a federal candidate or federal
election shall be presumed to be for the purpose of influencing a federal election, and
contributions resulting from that solicitation shall be subject to the prohibitions and

limitations of the Act. This presumption may be rebutted by demonstrating that the funds




were solicited with express notice that they would not be used for federal election
purposes.

B.  Complaint

The Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee and Donald Foley as Executive
Director filed a complaint with the Commission on September 20, 1995. Complainant
states that the Maine Republican Party violated FECA by raising “soft money” for the re-
election campaign of Senator Bill Cohen. According to the complaint, a reception was to
be held on September 23, 1995 at Ogunquit Maine for Senator Cohen. Former-President
George Bush was to be a “special guest” at the reception. Complainant alleges that “Few
illegal ‘soft money’ events have been advertised more openly. or conducted in more clear
cut violation of the law, than the one scheduled by The Maine Republican Party for this
weekend in Maine.” Complaint at 1.

Complainant attached two invitations to the complaint. The first states:

President George Bush
cordially invites you to a reception honoring
Senator Bill Cohen

Saturday, September 23, 1995

Attachment 1 at 1. The invitation notes that there is a VIP reception costing $1,000 per

person and a general reception costing $100 per person. A card enclosed with the

invitation allowed invitees to check off which reception they would attend or. if they
could not attend, that they could still contribute to Senator Cohen'’s re-election campaign.
The card states: “Please make checks payable to: Cohen for Senator.” [d.

The second invitation reads as follows:

The Maine Republican Party
cordially invites you to




a reception
honoring
Senator William Cohen
with special guest
President George Bush

Id. at 2. This invitation also states: “corporate contribution, $100 per person.” A card

enclosed with this second invitation allowed an invitee to check off three options: “I will
represent our company at Senator Cohen’s reception with President Bush;” “I cannot
attend but am sending representatives from our company -- enclosed is our business
check in the amount of . . . ;” or, "I cannot attend and cannot send representatives but here
is our corporate contribution of . . . .” Finally, the card noted: “Please make your
company business check payable to The Maine Republican Party.” Id, Complainant
alleges that this response card “emphasizes the strong business presence and corporate
money wanted and expected at the event.” Complaint at 2.

Complainant also enclosed a handwritten note on Maine Republican Party
letterhead, which, according to Complainant, “acknowledges an attempt to circumvent
federal law.” Complaint at 1. The note states:

Enclosed is an invitation to a very special and exciting George

Bush-Bill Cohen event. | hope your company and all your clients will

come to this fund-raiser. As you know, corporations can’t give to Bill

Cobhen directly so I hope you’ll urge them to come via the Maine

Republican Party.

I have sent all your clients invitations so please bring them and
yourselves.

Forrester Smith
State Finance Chair

Attachment 1 at 3.




Complainant argues that FECA stands for the proposition that federal candidates

and political parties must comply with the prohibition on corporate spending in federal
elections. “The law clearly requires that any activity, like the one conducted this
weekend in Maine, that is intended to assist a federal candidate be paid with only those
funds permitted under federal law . . . . All corporate contributions made directly or
indirectly are strictly prohibited. The Maine Republican Party has completely
disregarded this requirement.” Complaint at 2-3. Because Forrester Smith “specifically
admits an intent to accomplish by indirect means what the law directly prohibits,” id, at 3,
Complainant suggests that this fundraising activity might constitute a knowing and
willful violation of the Act.

C. Responses

1. Cohen for Senate Committee and Merton G. Henry, as treasurer
Senator Bill Cohen

Senator Cohen and the Cohen Committee (the “Cohen Respondents™) responded
to the initial complaint on October 23, 1995, and denied the allegations. According to the
Cohen Respondents, President George Bush agreed to sponsor a fundraising event for
Senator Cohen's 1996 re-election campaign. The Cohen Committee paid all costs for the
event including the mailing out of its own invitations. According to the Cohen
Respondents. the Maine Republican Party learned that the event would take place and
asked the Cohen Committee if the state party could send out invitations to the same event
and raise funds for its non-federal account. According to the response, “the state party

wished to raise non-federal funds so that it would not compete with Senator Cohen for




funds at the event he was organizing.” Response at 1. Senator Cohen agreed to this
request.

The Cohen Committee response states that: “‘Once Senator Cohen agreed to let
the Party raise funds from the event, Party officials, without showing the invitation first
to any representatives of Senator Cohen's committee, mailed over 1000 invitations to the
event along with a handwritten note that solicited non-federal funds for its accounts.” Id,
at 2. The Cohen Respondents assert that none of the $4,465.02 in funds raised at this
fund-raiser by the Maine Republican Party “have gone or will go to aid Senator Cohen’s
re-election effort,” and all costs for the fundraising event were paid by the Cohen
Committee. [d. at 1-3.

The Cohen Respondents note that corporate funds raised by a state party are

permissible under Maine law. They argue that the complaint is invalid “for its reckless

disregard for the facts. . . . The complaint states that the reception will feature

‘representatives of many state corporations bearing company checks for the Cohen re-
election effort.” There were no company checks and no corporate contributions for the
Cohen re-election effort.” Id, at 2. The response continues:

The letter says that since corporations cannot give to Senator Cohen's
campaign, the event with former President Bush and Senator Cohen will
nonetheless be open to contributors who wish to help the state party’s non-
federal account. There is nothing illegal about this. And there is certainly
no violation by Senator Cohen’s Committee for a statement by the state
party on its letterhead with its disclaimer that no one affiliated with
Senator Cohen’s Committee even saw before it was distributed.

Id. at 3. The response notes that while the complaint cites 2 U.S.C. § 441b as the central

code section of the complaint, “there is no charge . . . that Senator Cohen’s committee




ever received non-federal contributions or made expenditures with non-federal funds.”
Id. at 3.

The Cohen Committee attached and referred to three affidavits in its response --
from Merton G. Henry, treasurer of the Cohen for Senator Commiittee; Forrester Smith,
State Finance Chair of the Maine Republican Party; and Rick Tyler, Executive Director
of the Maine Republican Party. Attachment 2.

Mr. Henry states that the Maine Republican Party asked the Cohen Committee if
the state party could send out its own invitations to the President Bush-Senator Cohen
event to raise its own money. The Cohen Committee agreed and paid all costs associated
for the event, except for invitations sent out by the state party to solicit non-federal
contributions for its non-federal account. Mr. Henry notes that:

In raising its funds, the state party sent out over 1,000 invitations to

its own list. No official of the Cohen for Senate Committee saw the state

party's invitation before it was sent out and mailed. The Maine Party did

raise some funds from that event for its own uses. None of those funds

were ever planned to go to Senator Cohen’s campaign. None have gone to

Senator Cohen’s campaign. And none will be used to benefit Senator

Cohen’s campaign.

Attachment 2 at 2.
In his affidavit, Forrester Smith states that the purpose of his handwritten note

attached to the Maine Republican Party s invitation “was to urge corporate donations to

the Maine Republican Party.” ]d, at 3.

The purpose of my note was never in any way to solicit corporate
or other donations for the direct or indirect benefit of the Cohen
Committee. My note simply reminded those on the state party’s mailing
list that, while they could not make corporate donations to aid the Cohen
Committee, they could to the state party for use under Maine law. There
were no corporate funds for Senator Cohen's Committee and it is the




intent of the state party to follow federal election law and not spend any
corporate funds to aid Senator Cohen’s campaign.

Id, Mr. Smith states that prior to sending the note, he did not discuss it with anyone

associated with the Cohen Committee. He says that the event raised $4,465.02 for the
Maine Republican Party.

Rick Tyler states that “in order not to compete with Senator Cohen’s Committee,
the State party agreed to raise only non-federal funds from corporations, as permitted by
Maine law. Id. at 5. The only costs associated with the President Bush-Senator Cohen
event paid for by the state party were its own invitations. Approximately fifteen of the
one thousand Maine Republican Party invitations contained Mr. Smith’s cover message.

2. The Maine Republican Party and P. James Nicholson, as treasurer

The Maine Republican Party responded to the complaint on November 7, 1995,
and also denied the allegations. The state party attached copies of the Smith and Tyler
affidavits to its response. Attachment 2 at 3-6. The state party states that:

after learning of the event, the Maine Republican Party, desirous of raising

funds for its own programs, asked the Cohen for Senator Committee, if it

could also raise funds at the event. In order not to compete with Senator

Cohen’s Committee, the State party agreed to raise only non-federal funds

from corporations, as permitted by Maine law.

Maine Republican Party response at 2. The state party argues that there was no attempt
to circumvent FECA, and that the “invitation is quite explicit that all corporate donations
were for the Maine Republican Party and not for Senator Cohen.™ 1d.

D.  Analysis

Even though the Maine Republican Party is legally permitted 1o accept corporate

contributions for use in state elections, the manner in which the party raised these




corporate funds appears to violate FECA. The party mailed cut a formal printed

invitation and at least fifteen' of the invitations included a handwritten attachment from

Forrester Smith. Attachment 1 at 2-3. The formal invitation states: “The Maine
Republican Party cordially invites you to a reception honoring Senator William Cohen
with special guest President George Bush.” The Maine Republican Party is a party
committee which mailed out a solicitation that makes reference to a federal candidate.
The invitation expressly states that this was an event to honor Senator Cohen, and this
was the very same event where Senator Cohen was raising money for his own candidacy.
Pursuant to 11 C.F.R. § 102.5(a)(3), the solicitation is presumed to be for the purpose of
influencing a federal election. Even though checks were to be made payable to the Maine
Republican Party, there was no express notice that the solicited funds would not be used
for federal election purposes.

The problems raised by those invitations accompanied by the handwritten note
from the state finance chair are even more obvious. The note states: “Enclosed is an
invitation to a very special and exciting George Bush-Bill Cohen event. I hope your
company and all your clients will come to this fund-raiser. As you know, corporations
can’t give to Bill Cohen directly so [ hope you'll urge them to come via the Maine

Republican Party.” This note not only references a federal candidate and is enough to

' The Cohen Committee statcs that “Party officials, without showing the invitation
first to any representatives of Senator Cohen’s committee, mailed over 1000 invitations to
the event along with a handwritten note that solicited non-federal funds for its accounts.”
Cohen Response at 2. In fact, based on the affidavit from the state party chair. it appears
that the note was only attached to fifteen invitations. However. even though it was only
sent to fifteen invitees, the handwritten note specifically asks recipients to bring corporate
clients to the fund-raiser.
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raise the presumption that solicited funds will be used for the purpose of influencing a
federal election, but it also contains a clear implication that because the invitee cannot
contribute to Senator Cohen directly, the corporation can indirectly help Senator Cohen
by contributing to the Maine Republican Party. The note also contains no express notice
that the solicited funds would not be used for federal election purposes.

Based on all the information set forth above, this Office recommends that the
Commission find reason to believe that the Maine Republican Party and P. James
Nicholson, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b. Because only fifteen of the more
explicit handwritten notes were mailed out, because the solicitation only raised $4,465.02
in corporate contributions, and because none of the contributions actually appears to have
been used to influence federal elections as Senator Cohen is not seeking re-election, this
Office further recommends that the Commission take no further action as to this violation
and send an admonishment letter to the Maine Republican Party.

Based on the responses, affidavits, and the Maine Republican Party and Cohen
Committee 1995 Year End Reports, there is no indication that the state party made any
expenditures on behalf of Senator Cohen, that Senator Cohen accepted any contributions

or transfers from the state party, or that there were any discussions to use this money on

Senator Cohen’s behalf. 2 All expenses for the President Bush-Senator Cohen

2

Respondents did not violate the provision at 11 C.F.R. § 102.17 governing joint
fundraising by committees other than separate segregated funds. Pursuant to the
Explanation and Justification discussing this provision, prohibited contributions need not
be included in the total receipts for the purpose of allocating expenses. 48 Fed. Reg.
26300 (1983). In this situation, because all funds collected by the state party were
corporate contributions prohibited under FECA, the committees were not required to
comply with the joint fundraising procedures, and the Maine Republican Party was not
responsible for advancing any costs of the event.




fundraising event, except for the state party’s actual invitation, were paid by the Cohen

Committee and not by the Maine Republican Party. The invitation mailed out by the

Cohen Commiittee, attachment 1 at 1, is entirely permissible under federal and state law,

and all contributions accepted by the Cohen Committee complied with the Act’s
prohibitions. According to affidavits from the treasurer of the Cohen Committee, the
executive director of the Maine Republican Party, and the state finance chair of the Maine
Republican Party, no one from the Cohen Committee saw or approved either the Party’s
invitation or the accompanying handwritten note before it was sent out. Accordingly, this
Office recommends that the Commission find no reason to believe that Cohen for Senator
and Merton G. Henry, as treasurer, and Senator Bill Cohen violated

2US.C. §441b.

IIl. RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Find reason to believe that the Maine Republican Party and P. James
Nicholson, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b. but take no further
action.

Find no reason to believe that Cohen for Senator and Merton G.
Henry, as treasurer; and Senator Bill Cohen violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b.

Approve the appropriate letters.

Close the file.

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

Date '/ ¢ Lois G. Lefner
Associate General Counsel




Attachments:

1. Fund-raiser invitations
2. Affidavits
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D C 20463

LAWRENCE M. NOBLE
GENERAL COUNSEL

MARJORIE W. EMMONS/BONNIE J. ROSS
COMMISSION SECRETARY

DATE: APRIL 17, 1996

S : MUR 4264 - FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT
S DATED APRIL 9, 1996.

The above-captioned document was circulated to the Commission
Priday, April 12, 1996 at 12:00 p.m.

Objection(s) have been received from the Commissioner(s) as
indicated by the name(s) checked below:

Commissioner Aikens
Commissioner Elliott
Commissioner McDonald
Commissioner McGarry
Commissioner Potter
Commissioner Thomas

This matter will be placed on the meeting agenda for:
Tuesday, April 23, 1996 ;

Please notify us who will represent your Division before the Commission
on this matter. Thank You!




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of
MUR 4264
Maine Republican Party and
P. James Nicholson, as
treasurer)
Cohen for Senator and
Merton G. Henry, as treasurer;
Senator Bill Cochen

CERTIFICATION

I, Marjorie W. Emmons, recording secretary for the

Federal Election Commission executive session on April 23,
1996, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a
vote of 5-0 to take the following actions in MUR 4264:

r L. Find reason to believe that the Maine

Republican Party and P. James Nicholson,

as treasurer, violated 2 U.S5.C. § 441Db,

but take no further actiom.

2. Find no reason to believe that Cohen for
Senator and Merton G. Henry, as treasurer,

4 and Semator Bill Cohen violated 2 U.S8.C.

g § 441b.

o 3. Approve the appropriate letters as
recommended in the General Counsel's

N April 9, 1996 report.

4. Close the file.
Commissioners Aikens, Elliott, McDonald, McGarry,

and Thomas voted affirmatively for the decision.

Attest:




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

April 29, 1996

Donald Foley, Executive Director
Democratic Senatorial Campaign Committee
430 South Capitol Street, S.E.

Washington, D.C. 20003

Dear Mr. Foley:

This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on
September 20, 1995, concerning invitations to a fund-raiser honoring Senator Bill Cohen.

Based on that complaint, on April 23, 1996, the Commission found that there was reason
to believe the Maine Republican Party and P. James Nicholson, as treasurer, violated
2 U.S.C. § 441b, a provision of he Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.
However, after considering the circumstances of this matter, the Commission determined to take
no further action against the Maine Republican Party and P. James Nicholson, as treasurer, and
closed the file in this matter on the same date. This matter will become part of the public record
within 30 days. The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant
to seek judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See¢ 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

If vou have any questions, please contact me at (202) 219-3690.

Sincerely,

%: é-&%
Stephan O. Kline

Attorney

Enclosure
Ger.eral Counsel's Report
Celebrating the Commuission’s 20th Anniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

April 29, 1996
Merton G. Henry, Treasurer F

Cohen for Senator Committee
1385 Congress Street
P.O.Box 1379
Portland, Maine 04104
RE: MUR 4264
Cohen for Senator Committee and
Merton G. Henry, as treasurer

Dear Mr. Henry:

On September 29, 1995, the Federal Election Commission notified the Cohen for Senator
Committee and you, as treasurer, of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the
Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.

On April 23, 1996, the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the
complaint, and information provided by you, that there is no reason to believe the Cohen for
Senator Committee and Merton G. Henry, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b. Accordingly,
the Commission closed its file in this matter.

The confidentiality provisions at 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(12) no longer apply and this matter
is now public. In addition, although the complete file must be placed on the public record within
30 days, this could occur at any time following certification of the Commission's vote. If you
wish to submit any factual or legal materials to appear on the public record, please do so as soon
as possible. While the file may be placed on the public record before receiving your additional
materials, any permissible submissions will be added to the public record upon receipt.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

Lois G. Jerner
Associate General Counsel

Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report

Celebrating the Commussion’s 20th Anpniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

April 29, 1996

The Honorable Bill Cohen
322 Hart Senate Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

RE: MUR 4264
Senator Bill Cohen

Dear Senator Cohen:

On September 29, 1995, the Federal Election Commission notified you of a complaint
alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as
amended. On April 23, 1996, the Commission found, on the basis of the information in the
complaint, and information provided by you, that there is no reason to believe that you violated 2
U.S.C. § 441b. Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this matter.

The confidentiality provisions at 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(12) no longer apply and this matter
is now public. In addition, although the complete file must be placed on the public record within
30 days, this could occur at any time following certification of the Commission's vote. If you
wish to submit any factual or legal materials to appear on the public record, please do so as soon
as possible. While the file may be placed on the public record before receiving your additional
materials, any permissible submissions will be added to the public record upon receipt.

Sincerely,

Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

BY: %2\
Lois G. Kerner

Associ#te General Counsel

Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report

Celebrating the Commission s 20th Anniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

il April 29, 1996
Thomas B. Wheatley, Esq.
55 Highland Street
Portland, Maine 04103-3042
RE: MUR 4264
Maine Republican Party and
P. James Nicholson, as treasurer

Dear Mr. Wheatley:

On April 23, 1996, the Federal Election Commission found reason to believe that your
clients, the Maine Republican Party and P. James Nicholson, as treasurer, (“Committee™) violated
2 U.S.C. § 441D, a provision of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.
However, after considering the circumstances of this matter, the Commission also determined to
take no further action and closed its file. The General Counsel’s Report, which formed a basis for
the Commission’s finding, is attached for your information.

The Commission reminds you that the Committee’s solicitations for corporate
contributions violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b because they made reference to a federal candidate. These
solicitations were presumed to be for the purpose of influencing federal elections because they
failed to contain an express notice that they would not be used for federal election purposes. Your
clients should take steps to ensure that this activity does not occur in the future.

The confidentiality provisions at 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)12) no longer apply and this matter is
now public. In addition, although the complete file must be placed on the public record within 30
days, this could occur at any time following certification of the Commission’s vote. If you wish to
submit any factual or legal materials to appear on the public record, please do so as soon as
possible. While the file may be placed on the public record before receiving your additional
materials, any permissible submissions will be added to the public record upon receipt.

If you have any questions, please contact Stephan Kline, the attorney assigned to this
matter at (202) 219-3690.

JohnWarren McGarry
Vice Chairman
Enclosure

General Counsel’s Report

Celebraiing the Commussian’s 20th Anniversary

YESTERDAY, TODAY AND TOMORROW
DEDICATED TO KEEPING THE PUBLIC INFORMED
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